
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 

SAM NlJN"f'.< 


ATLANTA FEDERAL CENTER 
61 FORSYTH STREET 

ATLANTA GEORGIA 30303·R9tiO 

CERTIFIED MAlL MAR 092011 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Ms. Karin S. Torain 
PCS AdminiSlration (USA), Inc. 
1101 Skokie Boulevard, Suite 400 
Northbrook, Illinois 60062 

SUBJECT, 	 PCS Phosphate Company, Inc. 
Consent Agreement a.nd Final Order 
Docket No. BPCRA-Q4-2011-2030(b) 

Dear Ms. Torain: 

Enclosed please filld an exc<uted copy of the Consent Agreement Wld Final Order 
(CAFO) that resolves the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986 
(EPCRA) malter (Docket No. EPCRA-Q4-2011-2030(b» involving PCS Phosphate Company, 
Inc. The CAFO was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk, as required by 40 C.F.R. Part 22 
and became effective on the date of the filing. 

Also enclosed, please find a copy of the "Notice of Securities and Exchange Commlssion 
Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings." This document puts you on 
notice of your potential duty to disclose to the Security Wld Exchange C"mmlssion (SEC) any 
environmental enforcement actiom taken by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). If 
you ha'le any questions with regards to the SEC~s emrironmen.tal disclosure requ1rcments, you 
may refer to the contact phone number at the bottom of the SEC Notice. 

JfYOll have any questions, please call Ms. Deanne Grant at (404) 562-9291. 

Sincerely, 

Cn~2]:,~
EPCRA Enforc-ement Section 

Enclosures 

'1terrl.ltAcdn,$S (L'Rl)., h1tp~'tNWW.epa.gov 


~}'CIaIM<. PrTlBC \V'tJ" V4gaMble OJ, 8,1&00 Inks ill' Recycled Paper (Minimum 3()'\, P~me<i 


http:h1tp~'tNWW.epa.gov


UNlTEIl STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENC¥. 
REGION 4 f" 

IN TilE MATTER OF: 

PeS Phosphale Company. inc. 

Respondent 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Dod"'t Number: RPCR :c.:A-04.2011-20.il(b) 

<::;ONSI;NT AGREEMENT AND FINAL QRDER 

L ]\al.urc of the Action 

1. This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Se<.."tiQn 109 of'lhe Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and liability Aot (CERCLA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 9609 and Seotion 325 of the Emergency Planning and Commnnity Right-to-Know Act 
(EPCRA); 42 U.s.c. § 11045 and pursuant to the Consolidated Rules of Practice GovernIng 
Administrative A:isessrnent of Civil Penalties, and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of 
Permits (Consolidated Rules), codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 22. Complainant is the Director of the 
Air, Pesticides and Toxies Management Division, Region 4, United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA). Respondent is pes Phosphate C-Ornpany; Inc. 

2. Complainant and Respondent have c.onferred lor the purpose of settlement 
pursuant to 40 CF.R. § 22, 18(b) and desire to resolve this matter and settle the aUegatiollS 
described herein without a lonnal hearing. Therefore, without the taking of any evidence or 
testimony, the making of any argument. or the adjudication ofany issue in this matter, and in 
accordance v.ith 40 CF.R. §§ 22. 13(b) and 22. 18(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Qrder 
(CAPO} will ):;imultaneously C·Olnmence and conclude this matter. 

Il. Preliminary Statements 

3. The authority 10 take action nnder Section 109 ofCERCLA, 42 U$.C. § 9609 and 
Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 USc:. § 11045, is vestcd in the Administrator ofEPA. Tbe 
Administrator ofEPA Ims delegated this authority nnder CERCLA and under EPCRA to the 
Regional Administrators by EPA Delegations 14-31 and 22-3-A, both dated May 11,1994. The 
Regional Administrator, Region 4, has reddcgated to the Director, Air, Pesticides and Toxkcs 
Management Division, the authority under CERCLA by EPA Region 4 Delegation 14-31 dated 
March 8,1999, and updated August 6, 2004, and the authority under EPCRA hy EPA Region 4 
Delegation 22-3-A, dated Kovember 8, 1994. Pursuant to these delegations, the Dir~t.:tur of lhe 
Air, Pesticides and Toxks Management Division has the authority to commence an enforcement 
action as the Complainant in this matter. 



4. Respondent. pes Phosphate CQmpany, Inc., is a corporation doing business in the 
State ufNorth Carolina. 

5. Respondent is a "person" as defmed in Section 329(7) of BPCRI\, 42 U.s.c. 
§ 11049(7) and Section 101(21) o[CBRCIA 42 (;.S.c. § 9601(21), 

6. Respondent h"" a "facility" as that tenn is defined by Section 101(9) of CERCLI\, 
42 U.S.C § %01(9) and by Section 329(4) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11049(4), 

7. Re~pondt:nt':s 1acility is located at 1530 Highway 306 South, Aurora, North 
Carolina 27806, 

8, Respondent is an "m-vner or operator'" of the facility as that term is defmed by 
Section 101(20)(1\) ofCERCLA. 42 U.s.c. § %01(20)(A). 

III, EPA"s Allegations of Violations 

Violation "fSection !03/a} ufCERCLA 

9. Section 102(a) ofCERCLA. 42 U.S.c. § 9602(a), required the Administrator of 
EPA to publish a list of substances designated as hazardous substances which, when released 
into the environment. may present substantial danger to public health or welfare or the 
environment and to promulgate regulations I.!stablishing th~ quantity of any ha:t~us substance 
the ",lease of which was required to be reported illlder Section lO3(.) of CERCLA, 42 1:.S,C. 
§ 9603(n)" EPA has: puhHshed and amended such a list, including the corresponding r;.,1'0rtablc 
quantiHt's (RQ) for those substances" This list, which is codifie.d at 40 C.F.R Part 302, was 
initially published on I\pril4, 1985 (50 Fed, Reg, 13474) and is periodically amondod. 

lQ. Section 103(.) ofCERCLA, 42 USc. § 9603(a), and the regulations found at 
40 c'F,R, § 302.6, n:quLre a person in charge of a facility or vessel to immediately notify the 
National Respon5e Center (NRC), as soon as he or she has knowledge ofa release ofa hazardous 
substance from such facility or vessel in an amount equal to, or greater than the RQ, 

11. Respondent wa:>- the- Qvvuer or operator of the facility during the relevant period 
described below. 

12. Ammonia is a "hazardous substance" as that teon is defined by Sec'tion 101(14) of 
CERCLA, 42 U.s.c. § %01(14), with an RQ of 100 pound,c as specified in 40 CFcR. § 302,4. 

13, On October 9, 2009,!\Ild on June 16,2010, Respondent had a roleose ofammonia 
above the RQ at the facility. 

14. EPA alleges that Respondent violated the notification requirements ofSectiQU 
103(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § %03(a), and the _Iie.ble CERCLA regulations. 40 C.f-R. 
§ 302.6, by failing to itrunediately notify the NRC as soon as Respondent had knowledge of the 
release of ammonia in an amount equal to or greater tlmn its RQ at Respondent's Jacility, anu is 
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therefore subject to the assessment ofpenalties under Section 109 ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. 
§ 9609. 

15. Pursuant to Section 109 ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609, and 40 C.P.R. Part 19, 
EPA may assess a penalty not to exceed $37,500 for each violation of Section 103(a) of 
CERCLA,42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), that occurred after January 12,2009. Each day a violation of 
Section 103 continues constitutes a separate violation. Civil penalties under Section 109 of 
CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609, may be assessed by Administrative Order. 

Violations of Section 304(a) ofEPCRA 

16. Section 304(a) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §II 004(a) and the regulations found at 
40 C.F.R. § 355, Subpart C, require the owner or operator of a facility at which hazardous 
chemicals are produced, used or stored, to immediately notify the State Emergency Response 
Commission (SERC) and Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) when there has been a 
release of a CERCLA hazardous substance or an EPCRA extremely hazardous substance in an 
amount equal to or greater than the RQ. Section 304(a) does not apply to any relea<;e which 
results in exposure to persons solely within the site or site~ on which a facility is located. 

17. Respondent was thc owncr or operator of the facility during the relevant period, 
described below. 

18. At all times relevant to this matter, the facility produced, used, or stored 
"hazardous chemicals" as defined under Section 311(e) of EPCRA, 42 u.s.c. § II021(e) and 
under29C.F.R. § 1910.1200(c). 

19. Ammonia is an "extremely hazardous substance" as that tenn is defined by 
Section 329(3) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11049(3), with an RQ of 100 pounds, as specified in 
40 C.F.R. Part 355, Apps. A & n. 

20. On October 9, 2009, Respondent had a release of ammonia above the RQ at the 
facility . EPA alleges that the release resulted in the potential for exposure to persons beyond the 
site or sites on which the facility is located. 

21. Respondent violated the notification requirements of Section 304(a) ofFPCRA, 
42 U.S.C. § 11 004(a), and tile applicable EPCRA regulations of 40 C.F.R. § 355, Subpart C, by 
failing to immediately notify the SERC and LUPC as soon as Respondent had knowledge of the 
release of ammonia in an amount equal to or greater than thc RQ at Respondent's facility, and i~ 
thcrcfore subject to the assessment ofpenalties under Section 325 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. §11 045. 

22. Pmsuant to Section 325(b) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § l1045(b), and 40 C.F.R. 
Part 19, UPA may assess a penalty of not more than $37,500 for each violation of Section 304( a) 
ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11004(a), that occurred aller January 12,2009. Civil penalties under 
Section 325(b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § l1045(b), may be assessed by Administrative Order. 
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IV, Consent Agreement 

23. For the purpost:s of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations 
:it't ou1 above but neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set out above. 

24. Respondent wruves any right to contest the allegations l:md it.., right to appeal the 
proposed Final Order accompanying the Consent Agreement. 

25, Re~pondent consents to the assessment of and agrees to pay the civil penalty as 
set forth in this CAFO. 

26, Respondent certifies that as of the date orits execution of this CAFO. it is in 
compliance with all relevant requirement. of CERCLA and EPeRA. 

27. Compliance with the CAFO shaH resolve thi; allegations of violations contained 
herein. This CAFO shall not othen:vlse affect any liability of Respondent to the United States 
othcr than as expressed herein. Ncither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to bring an 
enforcement action against Respondent for violation ofany federal or state statute, regulation or 
permit. to initiate an action for imminent and substantial endangcnnent, or to pursue criminal 
enforcement 

28. Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution ofthjs 
CAPO. The parties agree that the settlement ofthis matter is in the public interest and lhatthis 
CAFO is consistent with the applicable requirements ofCERCLA and EPCRA, 

V. Final Order 

29. Respondent shall pay a civil penally ofTWENTY EIGHT THOUSAND EIGHT 
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2R,SOO) for the CERCLA violatlon(s) which shall be paid within 
thirty (30) days of the efIcctive date oflhis CAFO. 

30. Respondent shaH pay ule CERCLA civil penalty by forwarding a cashier's or 
certified check. payable to "EPA Hazardous Substance Superfund" to one of the following 
addresses: 

IWMAIL BY OVERNIGHT 
U.s. Environmental Protection Agency U.S. Bank 

~uperfund Payments 1005 Convention Pwza 

Cincinnati Finance Center ;\(Iail Station SL-MO-C2GL 

P.O. Box 979076 51 Louis, ;\(Iissourl 6310I 

51 Louis, ;\(Iissouri 63197-9000 


The check shall reference on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFO. 
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31. Respondent shall pay [he EPCRA civil penalty of ELEVEN THOUSAND FIVE 
HUNDRED DOLl.ARS ($11,500) for the EPCRA violation(s) which shall bc paid within thirty 
(30) days of the ellcetive date of this CAtO. 

32. Respondent shall pay the penalty by forwarding a cashier's or certified check 
payable to l1Treasurer, United States of America," to the following address: 

The check shalll'eference on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFO, 

BYMA]L BY OVERNI91:lI 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency U.S. Bank 

Fines and Penalties 1005 ConventionPlaz. 

Cin\'~innati Finance Center Ylail Station SL-MO-C2G1. 

P.O. Box 979077 St. Louis, Missouri 63101 
51. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000 

33. At the time ofpayment. Respondent shall send a separdte copy of t7dch check. and 
a written statement that payment has been made in accordance \\1th this CAFO, to the following 
persons at the iollowing addrCStics: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U,S, EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Deanne Grant 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air. Pesticides & Toxics Management Divisiou 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Goorgia 30303 

Saundi WilStJn 
U.s. EPA, Region 4 
Office of Eoviroulllentai Accountability 
61 Forsyth Street, S, W, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

34. For the purposes of "",te and federal income taxes, Respondent shall not be 
entitled, and agrees not to attempt, to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 
pursuant to this CAFO. Any attempt by Rcspond<:nt to deduct any such paymenls shall 
{!onstitutc a violationoI' this CAFO. 

35, Pursuant to 31 U.S.c. § 3717, EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on 
debt:; owed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost of processing and handling a 
delinquent claim. Interest wiiJ thcrciore b~gin to accrue on the civil penalty from the effective 
date of this CAFO if the penalty is not paid by the date required. Interest will be assessed at the 
rate established by the Secretary of Treasnry pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717. A charge will be 
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assessed to cover the cost'): ofdeht collection, including pTQCCSSing and handling costs and 
attorney fees. In aUdition, • penalty charge will be assessed on any portion ofthe debt that 
remains delinquent more than ninety (90) days after payment is due. 

36. Complainant and Respondent shaH bear their o\\<u costs and attorney fees in this 
maHtT. 

37. This CAfO shall be binding upon the RespQfl.defl.t, its successors, and assigns. 

38. The follQwing individual is authorized to receive service for EPA in this 
proceeding: 

Caron B. Falconer 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air. Pesticides & Toxics Management Division 
61 Forsytb Slrcct, S,W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
(4Q4) 562-8451 

39. Eavh undersigned representative of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or 
she is fully authorir.ed by the party represented to enter into this CAPO and Jegally bind that 
party to it 

THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
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VI. Effectiye Date 

40. The effective date of this CAFO shall be the date on which the CAFO is filed with 
the Regional Hearing CJerk, 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

PCS Phosphate Co., Inc. 

By: (Signature) Date:~0eeil .. ~da;l2011 
Name: <::/:reVC'AJ A. ~~ (Typed or Printed) 

Title: ......~AJ,,7?At..~ (Typed or Printed) 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

::r. ! ,,­
By: iie~~J~;;st:' ctor 

Air, Pesticides & Toxics 

Management Division 


Region 4 


o.;!;­
APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this .........~".......... "OJ of Yltaec,.l., ,2011 . 


.L-d·.~

Susan B. Schuh 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

Jhereby certify that I have this day served a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Consent Agreemenl and Final Order, In the MatterofPCS Phosphl1g: Companv. Inc" Docket 

No. EPc.RA 04"201l-20~O!.lil, on the parties listed below in the manner indicated: 

Caron B. falconcr (Via EPA's internal mail) 
Air. Pesticides & Toxies rvfanagement Division 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street. SW 
Atlanta. GA 30303 

Vera Kornylak (Via EPA's internal mail) 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
U,s. EPA, Regio114 
61 Forsyth Street, SW 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Karin S. Torain (Certified Mail - Return Receipt Requested) 
PCS Administration (USA). Inc. 
11 0 1 Skokie Boulevara, Suite 400 
Northbrook. Illinois 60062 

Patricia A. U oc . Regional Hearing Ck-rk 
'U.S, Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-9511 
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I 

, 

EPA ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE CONTROL NUMBER FORM 

TO BE COMPLETED BY TIlE ORIGINATING OFFICE, 
(Attac:b a copy of the 6nal order and tnnsmitW letter to J)d'mdant1RapuodEnt) 

TbisrormwasoriPnatedbJ:'s__au_D_d_i_W_i_l_so_n___---;==_________ .. _~34r.i.J....Lc.:'_)_ 
(NaDR) 	 (Date) 

inm.'____R_e~gi_O_n_4~._O_R_C_._OEA_~~~----;----------~(404)582"9504'0
(Offi<e) (T........N.-..) 

D NOd-SF JucUclal Order/Consem DecrH 
USAOCOLLECl'S 

Adminl5tn.Uve OrderIComent Acreemmt 
FMOCOLLECTSPAYMENT 

D SF JudiCial Ordet/CO&9ItDt Dtcrft 
ooJ COLLECTS 

D 
D 

DYenI",B..,.. C....................... 
Seat witb biB --­

Not JiaIl with biD 

D D DYenI........... C........................ 

D D 

PA~'________~==~==~~~±=~=7.C~~u~~~~~~c==~--------__
(Name al pa50II aad/OI' CompaaylMllllkipaiity the paJIDnIt) 

The Total Dollar AIDIIUDl 01 tbe RKeiftllle: $ cJ'Ci'ft l' II:)Xi 

- -....:: 

The IFMS Aa:ounts RecembIe CoatroI Number III: 	 Date,________ 

DlSTRIBtlT1ON: 

A. 	 JUDICIAL ORDERS: C.... tlllB r_ witb. ID. utacbId copy of tbI frooI pp of tIw FINAL JUDICIAL ORDt:R 
sbouWH ........: ' 

_ ........0.­I. 	 L 
Ea.......... Eal~ Sectioct. l. 
Depao .... III Justice RM. I"" 
P.O..... 7'U.1JaIjIDII ~ StatioD 
W~D.C"'" 


